94 QUARTERLY MEETINGS.

have been, I think we may feel assured that, if they had
been removed on that or any other occasion, or been acci-
dentally destroyed any considerable time before the disso-
lution of the monastery, the space would not have been
allowed to remain vacant. It appears to me most probable
that the arms of Queen Philippa were on that shield, and
that it was by some accident broken since the monastery
was dissolved. :

I have been induced to point out the incorrectness of
Yates in regard to these shields, not with any intention of
impugning the general accuracy of his history, but as a
caution to those who are pursuing the study of mediaeval
architecture, without a competent acquaintance with the
heraldry of the period ; a subject only a few years ago.so
little understood that no reliance can be placed on the state-
“ments or conclusions of local historians, even of recent date,

however trustworthy in other respects. W. 8. W,

QUARTERLY MEETINGS.

HawsTED AND HARDWICK, June 17, 1858.—The Right Hon. and Rev. Lord Arthur
Hervey, President, in the Chair.

The Tnstitute assembled at the church of Hawsted, where the Rev. W. Collett,
the Rector, and Mrs. Collett received the visitors, and where the Honorary Secretary
read a paper assigning, from documentary evidence, the precise dates of various parts
of the fabric. The company then proceeded to Hawsted Place, the site of the old
moated house of the Drurys. Here Sir Thomas Cullum conducted the visitors
to some remarkably fine lime and oriental plane trees—the latter, it is believed, the
oldest andfinest specimens of the kind in the kingdom. Mr. Tymms then read an
account of the manorial history of Hawsted and of the knightly family of the
Drurys, by whom Hawsted Place was oceupied for 150 years. On leaving Hawsted
Place the company proceeded to Hardwick House, the seat of the Rev. Sir
Thomas Gery Cullum, Bart, The Company having assembled in the entrance
hall, the Secretary gave a brief history of the house and its possessions, and pointed
out some of the most remarkable objects of vertu and antiquarian interest in the
possession of the owner. The Rev. J. W. Donaldson, D.D., then read a descriptive
and explanatory paper on the Etruscan tomb, brought from Chiusi in 1841, which
occupies a prominent place in the hall. At the close of this paper the visitors
adjourned to the dining-room, where a variety of antiquities had been arranged on
the table, and were afterwards invited to an elegant repast under a marquee on the
lawn. The yarious papers read at this meeting will be found printed in this volume,
pp. 1-40.. . :
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MELFQRD, Sept. 29, 1858.—The Rt. Hon. and Rev. Lord Artlur Hervey, President,
in the Chair.

The company assembled at the Bull Inn, where a collection of antiquities con-
nected with the locality were arranged as a temporary museum.

The following presents were announced :—

Reports of the Associated Societies of Northampton, Lincoln, St. Alban’s, -
Bedfordshire, and York; from the Societies.

Publications of the Cambridge Antiquarian Society, No. III.; from the Society.

Notes of the Bedfordshire Architectural Society, Nos. 1 and 2; from the
Society.

Lyi,fe of Henry VIII, by Edward Lord Herbert, of Cherbury, fol. 1649 ; from
G. A. Partridge, esq.

Archeeologia, or Transactions of the Society of Antiquaries, vol. 35, part I.;
Proceedings of the Society of Antiquaries, vol. IL., Nos. 33-36; Catalogue of the
Kerrich Collection of Coins ; from the Society of Antiquaries.

Tracts on Antient Spanish Coins and Curious Forgeries of Scotch coins; from
J.Y. Akerman, esq., F.8.A. :

Proceedings of the Kilkenny Archmological Society ; from the Society.

Bryan’s Dictionary of Painters and Engravers, 2 vols. 4to. ; from Sir Thomas
Rokewode Gtage, Bart.

Cast of an inscription; from the Rev. J. W, Donaldson, D.D.

An impression in wax of the antient seal of the Dean and Chapter of Litchfield,
from s matrix found in Cavendish, in this county, and now in the possession of the
Rev. T. Castley, rector of that parish. The seal is oval, and represents in the lower
part the figure of St. Chad seated on an episcopal throne, under a tabernacled
canopy, and holding the crozier in his left hand, and the right raised as in the act of
benediction. Above is the Virgin Mary with the infant Jesus in her arms. On either
side of 8t. Chad is a star, and on the right of the Virgin is another star ; and on her
left a crescent, with s blazing star above it. The legend is 8. DECANI. ET OAP'LI.
ECCLIE. 8'C'E MARIE ET. 8'C'I. CEDDE. LYCHEFELD’ AD. CAS", i

" An impression in wax of the seal of William Darel, from Mr. G, Whitaker. The
seal is oval, and represents a tabernacle of two series of niches. In the lower two is
the figure of 8t. George and the Dragon, with a person kneeling before him ; in the
upper three niches are the Virgin and child with a figure, holding & sword and
kneeling, on either side. Around it, 8. MAG'RI WILLELMI DAREL,

A groat of Henry the Seventh, from Mr. C. B, Hine. -

A Colchester halfpenny, from Mr. Catchpole. On the obverse is a loom and
“ Success to the Bay Trade;” on the reverse, Colchester Castle, and date 1794; on
the edge, “ Payable at Charles Heath's, Bay maker, Colchester.”

Leaden tokens of St. Nicholas, found in Bury, from F. Wing, esq., Mr. Farrow,
and Mr. J. G. Johnson. .

Leaden token, size of a florin, with man on horseback, and a groat of Henry the
Sixth ; from Mr. Bacon.

R. Almack, esq., F.8.A,, V.P,, exhibited an extensive collection of documents ,
and drawings, chiefly relative to buildings, persons, and events in Melford and other
parts of the county. Among them were:—

A conveyance, dated 15th Henry the Seventh, 1499, from Richd. Serjeaunte,
‘Wm. Clopton, and Thos. Rokewode, esqrs., to John Carter, chaplain, of lands and
tenements in Melford, adjoining to lands of the hospital of St. Saviour, in Bury.
This Wm. Clopton was afterwards a knight, and eldest son of John Clopton. Thos.
Rokewode, of Coldham Hall, married Anne Clopton, sister to this Sir William, and
from them the family of Rokewode Gage are descended. One of the attesting wit-

nesses is John Cordell, probably the father of 8ir Wm. Cordell, founder of Melford
Hospital.
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A deed, dated 17th Elizabeth, 1574, and signed by Dame Elizabeth Golding,
widow of Sir Thos. Golding, kt., “ according to the monicion of the Rt Worshipful
Sir ‘William Corvdall, knight, Master of the Queen’s Majt*s Rolls,” Sir Wm. Cordall
gigns as an attesting witness, © 8¢ Willm Cordall, Knyght.”

A printed and sealed invitation to the funeral of Sir John Moore, kt., who was
Lord Mayor of London, 1682, and M.P. for the city. He was a person of great
wealth and importance, and lent to Charles the Second a large sum, for which he had
an addition to his arms, “ on a canton a lion of England.” Great part of his fortune
went to his kinsman, John Mould, esq., who assumed the name of Moore, and pur-
chased the Kentwell Hall estate in Melford, where his descendants remained until
recently.

A lettor written by Charles Drew, the murderer, the night before he was hanged,
in which he makes a curious exfiosure of the extortion by the officers of justice, &e.,
at Newgate. Drew was hanged at Bury St. Edmund’s in 1739 for the murder of his
father at Melford. He was an only son, and had a considerable estate in Melford
and other parishes, which became forfeited to the Crown. King George the Second,
by letters patent, granted the estates to the five sisters, and from them numerous
respectable persons are descended;.&,i .

A drawing of Acton Place, Siffolk, as it stood in the time of the Daniel family.
James Howell, in a letter dated 1619, states that Mr. Daniel made good store of wine
in his vintage here. The Jennens family purchased the estate and rebuilt the
house about 1725.

A special passport, dated 28th November, 1770, for Robt. Peckham, esq., signed by
Louis the Fifteenth, and countersigned by the minister, Duke of Choigeul, who was
afterwards beheaded. A. counterpart deed of covenant, given by the same Robert Peck-
ham, as Lord Mayor of London, for the safety of the jewels, plate, &ec., belonging to
the city, delivered to him, and of which a particular inventory is given; signed by
the celebrated John Wilkes, as Chamberlain of London: dated 8th April, 1783. The
watchword at the Tower for the month of December, 1783, signed by King Greorge
the Third : the word confided to the Liord Mayor and by him given out every night.
Letter from William Pitt to the same Robert Peckham, dated 2nd March,-1794.
Some silver lace, part of a wedding favor, worn at the marriage of George the Third.
Frances, the only sister of Robert Peckham, esq., was great-grandmother of Frances,
the wife of Richard Almack, esq.

Mr. Almack also exhibited some Roman urns and a small cup of green glass,
found at Melford. A fine gold coin of Cunobelin, with wheat ear reverse, found at
Glemsford. A part of the plaid worn by the last Pretender ; a piece of the broad
blue riband which supported the badge of the Garter, worn by his father the old
Pretender ; also an engraved ticket of admission to the private meetings of the
followers of the Stuarts (see copy and description in Gentleman’s Magazine for Jan.,
1828) ; also a MS. dated 1749, which authenticates the articles. ILeather gauntlet
gloves embroidered, worn by Edmund OCricke, esq., time of James the First. His
portrait, painted by Cornelius Janssen, three-quarters and large as life, “ L. 73,
anno Domini 1628,” descended, with the gloves, to the family of Finch, of Finchden,
in Kent, and to Mr. Almack on the death of the last of that ancient family.

Several specimens of serpenfine, from the Lizard rock, near the Land’s End in
Cornwall. Serpentine forms the whole of the southern part of the Lizard point.
On the royal visit to Mount’s Bay, 1848, H. R. H. Prince Albert suggested that it
should be worked in large masses, which has since been done to a great extent.
Specimens were exhibited at the Gtreat Exhibition (class xxviI, No.85)., The
largest block worked in one piece is a pillar in the dining-room of the mansion of
Wmn. Williams, esq., late High Sheriff of Cornwall, called ¢ Tregullow,” in Cornwall,

Capt. Starkie Bence exhibited a deed of 20th June, 1657, in which Catherine
Cage, of Stansted, widow, assigns to John Cage, her son, the tenement in which she
dwelt and the meadow belonging thereunto for her life, the said son reserving to the
said Catherine a certain chafhber and a cellar. The deed, with a bond for perform-
ance of the same, was wrapped up in a piece of old parchment music, and found in a
recess in a chimney of a house in Stansted.

Mr. Woollard exhibited an embroidered satin apron worked in the year 1647,
and other pieces of old needle-work, and some beautiful quarries of old glass with
birds, and the instruments of the Crucifixion on a shield.
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Mr. Ardley exhibited asecond brass of the Bmperor Vespasian, found at Melford.
Obv. 1MP. CAESAR VESPASIANYS...... Rev, An eagle on  globe and 5. ¢. A Sudbury
halfpenny : Obo.  WILLIAM SHERMAN.” Rev. “ W, 8.” iu centre, and around: 1IN
SUDBURY, 1663.” A Wickhambrook halfpenny : Obv. “I0EN RAYMENT, IN WICKHA,”
surrounding a rose and crown, Rev, * BROOKE, GLASYER, 1669, 11IS HALFPENNY.”

The Rev. T. Preston exhibited a rubbing of a brass representing the Holy Trinity,
from Orford church.

The Rev. T. Castley exhibited an original portrait of Sir Wm. Drury, Knight,
Marshal of Berwick, temp. Elizabeth.

Mr. Tymms exhibited the matrix, in lead, of a seal found in Bury St. Edmund’s..
It is oval in form, and bears around the figure of a wyvern the words §' : ALICIE :
FIL'E : ADE. Can this be the seal of Alice St. Philibert, daughter and coheir of Sir
John St. Philibert, of Lackford, kaight of the shire®or Suffolk 17 Edw. IL., by Ada,
daughter of Jobn dc Botetourt? Alice St. Philibert was afterwards wife of Sir
Brian Stapleton, of Carleton and Wighill, co. York, K.G., and died 7 Richard
II. (1384). Her brother Sir John St. Philibert, married Joan, daughter of Robert
de Ufford, afterwards Earl of Suffolk, and ob. s. p.

Mr. T. O. J. Brooke exhibited an interleaved copy of Rider’s British Merlin for
the year 1673, containing MS. memoranda of politicel, local, and family cvents.

_ The members then proceeded to visit Melford Hall, the Church, Kentwell Hall,
and Melford Place ; where papers were read by Mr. Almack and Mr. Tymms, which

will‘be found printed in pp. 50—88. The company afterwards dined together at the
Bull Inn, the Rev. Lord Arthur Hervey in the chair.

Bury St. Epyunp's, Dee. 22, 1853.—The Right Hon. and Rev. Lord Arthur
Hervey, President, in the Chair.

The Rev. A. P. Dunlap presented some admirable copies and tracings, made by Mr.
Bacon, of Bury, and Mr. . Walden, of the curious mural pairtings discovered on
the walls of the nave of Bardwell church during the recent restoration of that
edifice, and papers explanatory of the subjects thercon, were read from the Rev. A.
P. Dunlap, Rector of Bardwell, and the Rev. J. W. Burgon, Fellow of Oriel college,
Oxford. (See p. 41.) ’

A paper on the ‘Court Leet of the borough of Clare, with extracts from the
‘verdicts of the Headboroughs, communicated by Mr. J. B. Armstead, local secretary,
was also read.

Mr. N. 8. Hodson presented specimens of the lace bark of Jamaica; two leaden
sepulchral crosses, from the churchyard, Bury ; an engraved bronze spur, and other
objects found in the Botanic Gardens.

Mr. Bromley exhibited the original emblazoned grant of arms, dated July 28,
1658, from Wm. Hervy, Bsq., Clarenciculx King of Arms, unto Thomas Huys, of
Kenmerton, co. Gloucester, lisq., one of the Physicians in Ordinary to Queen Mary,
¢ in consideration of his trew and faythfull seruyce done vnto owr Souereigné Lady
the Quene’s Matie ”—to wit, ¢ Grules, a bend betwene two demy lyons argent, on the
bend thre flouredeluces sables, and to his crest uppon the helme a storke in his proper
coulers, that is silver, membryd and bekyd gules, holding in his beke a mary gold, the
flowre gold, the stalke'vert, standing on & mount whereon growyth wylde margerom
vert, on g wreth argent and sable mantelyd gules dobl&d argent.” The letters patent
appointing Dr. Huys Ordinary Physician to the Queen, with diets and allowances of
wine, wax, and bowge le courte, and an annual fee of 100Z., were dated 2d Oct. 1553,
and are printed in Rymer’s Feedera, xv. 341. Dr. Huys died in August, 1558 —
the month following the grant of arms—as appears by the following entry of his
burial in the diary of Henry Machyn, citizen and merchant-tailor of London, edited

VOL. II. 0 )
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by J. G. Nichols, Esq., F.8.A,, and printed for the Camden Society :—¢ The viij
day of August was bered Master docthur Huwys the quen’s fesyssyon, with ij grett
whyt branchys, and xij grett stayffes torchys, and iiij grett tapurs, and iij dosen of
skochyons, and mony morners boyth men and women, at afternon.” .

An original warrant of Oliver Cromwell for the immediate payment of 1500L to
William Jessop, Esq., dated 1654. It has the signature of the Lord Protector at the
head of the warrant, and to the endorsement  Our will and pleasure is this passe by
ymediate warranst.”

This grant of arms and autograph of Oliver Cromwell with an engraved * Des-
cription of solemn justs held at Westminster, 1st Henry 8th,” were found among
various old deeds and papers a few years since by Mr. Bromley, in Badmondisfield
(now called Bansfield) hall, in Wickhambrook.  Four silver picces of Elizabeth’s
reign, found in 1844 on the reméval of the old floor of the dining room of Bansfield
hall.

A small bronze figure and the handle of some weapon ornamented with four faces,
which, as well as several Roman coins, were dug up a few years since when draining
in a field called “ Honey-comb” (near which there is said to have been a Roman
encampment}, belonging to Mr. Bromley, in the parish of Lidgate, part of Wickham-
brook Lodge Farm, and formerly (as shown by a valuable old map, dated 1595, in
Mr,B.’s possession) part of Badmondisfield park. Other Roman relics are recorded
in Page’s “ Supplement to the Suffolk Traveller,” p. 907, as having been found in
the same field as far back as 1788.

Mr, Tymms exhibited a drawing by
Mr.Bacon of a small golden whistle, shewn
in the annexed engraving, found on New-
market heath, 14 years since, now in the
possession of Miss Evans, of Ely. Itisof
fine gold, of beautiful workmanship, and
weighs 12 dwts. 11 grains. From the
enamelled ruby cross on either side it
may have been worn by a dignified eccle-
siastic. .

Mr. J. Johnson exhibited a small
enamelled reliquary of the Russian empire.

Mr. Darkin exhibited two curious
ridge tiles, of the date of the beginning
of the 16th century, surmounted with
figures of & bear and his keeper. They
were faken from a house lately pulled
down in Guildhall-street, Bury. )

Mr. J. B. Armstead exhibited a :

Nurembergh token, found at Clare, and = bulla or seal of lead of Pope Innocent VI.,
found in the churchyard at Clare: on the Obv. INNOC’CTITS , PP. VI.; Rev. the usual
figures of S8. Peter and Paul, with initials 8. P. and 8. L.

" M. Pace presented a groat of Philip and Mary, of the first mintage after their
marriage ; it has the head of the queen alone on the Obv. with this legend, PHILIP z
MARIA D. @, REX ; on the Rev. the cross and shield, and POSYIMVS DEVM AVDITO NOS.
A penny of King John, struck at Dublin by order of John Grey, Bishop of Norwich,
and Justiciar of Ireland. On the Obv. is the full face of the king in a triangle, and
sceptre in right hand, JOHANES REX ; Rew. in a triangle a blazing star and a crescent,
with a small star in each angle, ROBERD 0N DIVE. A penny of Henry IIL.: on the
Obo. the crowned full face of the king and HENRICVS REX IIL, being the first instance
of numerals on any coin in the series of the kings of England; Rev. cross, pellets,
and circle, and WALIE ON...; and another penny of the same monarch, of similar
design but a different moneyer’s name, on Rev. WILLELM OX... ; both of these coins
of the second coinage. ~Mr. Pace also presented two pennies of the first coinage
of the same king. The numerals are omitted in the legend, On the Rev. of one

ILEBERD ON EC. and on the other RAVF oN LVND,

The Rev. Henry Creed presented a bronze medal in commemoration of the

Tercentenary of King Edward’s School, Bury St. Edmund’s. On the Obv, is the head
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of Edward VI., bearing the legend, “ EDVARD VI. LIB. SCOL. GRAMM. IN BUR. SCI.
EDI. INSTITUTOR.” On the Rev. is the Almz Mater, or presiding Genius of the
8chool, in a sitting posture, her left arm resting on a column; inscribed with the
names of “ SANCROFT-—NORTH—CLAGET—LYNDFORD — REYNOLDS—HANMER——CUM-
BERLAND—THURLOW—TOMLINE—~WRIGHT— BLOMFIELD — ALDERSON—CR..NWORTH—
MALKIN ;” whilst her right hand extends the laurel wreath to the successful candidate
for the prize, and the motto © ATUMNT QUANM DILECTI,” bears a double allusion to the
worthies already enrolled and those hereafter to be placed on her annals, In’ the
exergue is the date, “ ANNO TRECENT. CELEBR. AUG. IL amoccer” The portrait of
King Edward more resembles Holbein’s exquisite painting, than the prints usually
seen. The drawing for this, and the inscriptions, were furnished by the Rev. H.
Creed, by whom the medal was proposed at the meeting in the Spring of 1850 : the
design for the reverse is a modification of that gentleman's idea, which the medal
would not admit, by Mr. Wyon,.and is a chaste and classical conception. It may
be mnecessary to explain, in order to meet any critical observation, that the legend
follows the - writing of the Charter of the School.

Mr. Downes presented the brass stretcher of a purse or alms-bag of a mendicant
friar. On one side of the beam are the words AVE MARIA G’ACIA PLE and on the
other [¥] A DoMINY TECVM. On theshieldin the centre is the monogram I H § on one
side and the lester W on the other. A purse-stretcher, with similar inscriptions, but
having the frame-work of the bag complete was found at Yarm, in Durham, in 1847,
and is engraved in the 4th vol. of the Archeological Journal, p. 361.

Mr. Harriss presented two local halfpence. One of them of RICHARD PRIME,
GROCER, ‘AT. BERRY, 1660 ; the other PAYABLE AT CHARLES GUEST'S, AUCTIONEER,
D'I_IR;—With an arm holding an auctioneer’s hammer and the words ¢0ixg 4 GOING
1795.

Exz, April 27, 1854.—T%e Right Hon. and Rev. Lord Arthur Hervey, President, in
- _ the Chair. .

- The Institute met at Yasley church, where a paper was read by Mr. Tymms,

The company then proceeded to the Assembly Rooms at Tye, where, the chair
having been taken by the President, the following report of the Committee
was read, and on the motion of the Rev. H. Creed, seconded by the Rev. W. Grigson,
adopted : — . '

Pe The Committee, in presenting their Sixth Annual Report, beg to state that

since the last anniversary meeting an excellent small collection of specimens in Natural
History has become the property of and is accessible to the members of the Institute,
which now embraces within its range of inquiry the Natural History as well as the
Archseology and Topography of the entire county of Suffolk. X

*¢ The Committee have also accumulated a number of antiquities, and have com-
menced the formation of a library of works relative to the county, or written by
Suffolk authors.

¢ The Committee are desirous also, as opportunities offer, of acquiring not only
antiquities, original deeds, and MSS., but views, portraits, and representations,
engraved or otherwise, in any way illustrative of the topography of the county. They
have to thank many kind friends for donations already received; but as these objects
can only be accomplished ata great cost unless aided by the individual efforts of the
members themselves; and as fresh instances of the destruction or removal to a
distance of important records of every kind are continually coming to their know-
ledge, the Committee would earnestly appeal to all who may possess some solitary
and perhaps now ill-appreciated document or specimen, toallow such to be added to
t%le Society’s gatherings, and thus become ayailable to all who may feel interested in
them. :
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¢ The Committee are aware that much has been already dome by individuals to
elucidate the history of different portions of the county, but when the amount
accomplished is compared with that which remains still unfouched, it wilt appear to
be insignificant indeed. The Committee would therefore urge upon all those whose
posibion gives them o comamand over sources of information, promptly to communicate
such documents or facts as may come under their notice. It is not to be hopéd, nor,
-perhaps, in all cases to be desired, that the papers read at the General Meetings
should embrace all that may by lengthened researches be ascertainable on the subject
on which the author writes; but by the publication of information as soon as
acquired, all may be made acquainted with what is known and what is wanted, and
thereby find themselves able, or be induced, to supply what is defective, or clear up
what may be doubtful.

“During the past year the Institute has visited Hawsted, Hardwick, and
Melford; and it is gratifying to the Committee to report that on all occasions and in
every place they continue to experience the greatest attention from those locally.
connected with the objects of their inquiry.

‘ To the Rev. S8ir Thos. &. Cullum, Bart., and Tady Cullum the thanks of the
Institute are cminently due, not only for the facilities afforded for inspecting the
many objects of interest on their estate and in their mansion; but for their hospi-
tality to the visitors so liberally and elegantly dispensed. They bave also to thank
Sir Thomas Cullum for defraying a portion of the cost of the beautiful engraving of
the Etruscan tomb which appears in the first number of the second volume of the
Proceedings. .

“ The Committee desire also to make special mention of the zeal and liberality
of the Rev. A. P. Dunlap, Rector of Bardwell, who discovering that the walls of his
church had been decorated with paintings, had the accumulated whitewash removed
and fracings of the subjects carefully taken. These curious illustrations of the faith
and arts of a former age have been liberally presented to the Institute by Mr. Dunlap,
and are now in the hands of the engraver for issue, at as early a period as may be,
with the next part of the Proceedings.

¢ Meetings have been arranged for the ensuing year, at Bury, on Friday, the 7th
of July, on which occasion the Institute anticipate the honour of entertaining the
members of the Archaological Institute of Grreat Britain, who propose to come over
to Bury from Cambridge at their Annual Meeting ; and on September the 14th, at
TIpswich.

P The report of the Treasurer shows that the income of the Society for the past
year has been 777 3s. 6. ; and that the sum of 847. 11s. Od. hias been expended;

leaving a balance against the Society of 72 7s. 64., which will be more than covered
by the subscriptions remaining unpaid.” LN

¢

- TREASURER'S ACCOUNT, 1853-4.

Dr. £ s d| O £ s 4
Subscriptions, 1853 . . 57 0 O0|Balance paid . . . 16 5 2
s 1852 . . 8 10 0| Printing Proceedings, Part VII. 13 4 6

» 1851 . . 115 0 »  Bly Guide & Advertising2 5 0

s . 1830 . "'015 0 »  Rules, Notices, &e. 218 0

y 1849 0 5 O]Engravings. . . . 1313 3

Life Subscription . 5 0 0[Booksfor Library, Stationery, &e.7 4 5
Ely Guide sold . . . 2 10 0 |Expenses of Mcetings . 7 96
Proceedings sold 0 16 6| Postage, Parcels, &e. . . 517 6
Visitors to Muscum . 0 12 O|Payment to Athenzum 1310 6
* Balance due to Treasurer 7 7 6{Museum . . ., ., 2 38 2
£84 11 0 £84 11 0

SAMUEL TYMMS, Iveasurer.
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The following presents were announced as having been received since the last
general meeting :—

Series of plates of Suffolk local tokens, from W. S, Fitch, Esq.

On the Custom of Borough English in Sussex, by G. R. Corner, Esq., F.S.A. 3
from the Author.

Two coloured views of Bardwell Church ; from the Rev. A. P. Dunlap.

Drawing of paintings on wall of the gatchouse chamber, West Stow Hall ;
from Mr. R. Simpson, jun.

Drawing of oak carvings in Morthoe Church, Devonshire ; from J. 8. Phillips,
Esq.

Tive cases of British birds ; from the Rey. J. B. P. Dennis.

Transactions of the Kilkenny Archwological Society; from the Society.

Engraved representation of effigy of Sir Wm. de Berdewell, in the window of
Bardwell Church; from Mr. Warren.

A pair of Persian slippers; from Mr. Whitaker.

A section of the tropical or tree fern, with silky fibre from the interior; from
Mr. S. Tymms.

Some horns of the ox ; a shank hone of an ox, with a piece of iron, supposed to
be the point of an arrow or spear, fixed in it; and fragments of iron and glass,
recently found in the gravel below the foundations of the wall of Eye Castle; from
Mr. Williams.

The Right Hon. Lord Henniker
exhibited a British cinerary urn, found
in 1851 at Stoke Ash, on the north side
of the rivulet below the church; and
some {ragments of other vessels, a celt, &e.
The vase, shewn in the annexed engraving,
contained the bones of a young skelefon
(human), probably those of a female.
The following are the dimensions :—

INCHES
Height A £0 B...vveeeriinns vame, 1D
TP L eoveeevivierienan 1
Collar 1 to 2 ....... P 2
Diameter of top ...... . 10
of bottom .., 5

Beading ¢ £ D

Handles (4) 3 .vvviivenens

GiXth B &  sovnsensorasseine =
Four other vases, very much broken, were A
found at the same time. The one exhi-
bited was restored by C. R. Bree, Hsq., by whom the drawing for the above cut was
kindly presented to the Institute. :

Sir B. . Kerrison, Bart., exhibited two Computi, or rentals of lordships, lands,
manors, &e., in the counties of Suffolk, Norfolk, Essex, &ec., belonging to Sir Thomas
Cornwaleys, Kt., of Brome Hall, in the 16th and 30th years of Queen Elizabeth.

The Rev. C. R. Manning exhibited ten gold Roman coins, found at Lye, Suffolk,
in May, 1781. Several hundred coins were found at the time, chiefly of the
Emperors Honorius and Arcadius, in a leaden box ; and near them were found some
human bones. A small gold pendant ornament of the Saxon period found at Palgrave
in 1851. (Engraved p. 88.) A subsidy roll of Hoxne Hundred, 17th Charles I.

Mrs. Chenery exhibited a small mazer cup, set in silver, and a metal box of
Duteh workmanship, of the 17th century, engraven on one side with the creation of
Adam and Eve ; and the other with the temptation.

Mrs. Bdgar Chenery exhibited original wax impressions of seals of Henry
VIL (PRO BREVIBUS CORAM JUSTICIARTIS), Henry VIII. (Exchequer seal), and Queen
Mary. An elegant small silver basket for confectionery. .

The Rev. 8. W. Bull exhibited part of a British urn, discovered with others, in
1851, at Stoke Ash.

The Rev. Henry Creed exhibited an early watch, made by Robert Fenn, London,
one of the first members of the Clockmakers’ Company, temp. Chas. I. 1t is a beau-
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tiful specimen of studwork upon tortoiseshell, and works with a chain, one of the
earliest made. An English watch (one of the first made) attached to a.contemporary
dial-plate, constructed of catgut instead of a chain, which was not then invented.
- The maker was “ Edward East, Londini.” He was appointed one of the ¢ Assistants”
on the establishment of the Clockmakers’ Company in 1681, by charter of Charles I.
This dial wateh is in the possession of Mr. Marsh, of Diss. Beautifully carved ivory
tobacco stopper. A leaden medal in commemoration of the Peace concluded with the
Dutch at Breda, June 29, 1667. Obv. in exergue, “ REDIIT CONCORDIA MATER BREDE.
JUNE, 1667.” Rev. “MITIS ET FORTIS.” In exergue, *“ PROCUL HINC MATLA BESTIS
" REGNIS. JUNE 29, 1667.” A silver taper stand, o.D. 1703.

The Rev. H. Todd exhibited a black jack, of a quart measure, tipped with silver,
from Cornwall.

Mr. Keyworth Creed exhibited specimens of Sauraphis fetradactylus (four-toed

" snake-lizard) from Southern Africa; of Serpens biceps (two-headed snake) British;
and the tympanum, or bony enlargement at the end of the trachea of the Mergus
albellus (smew).

Miss G Creed exhibited one of the small earthenware beads and grotesque
faces which are found thickly scattered on the outside of some tumuli aé the pyramids
of Otumba, in Mexico. X

Mr. T. G. Youngman exhibited some beautiful needlework, supposed to be of the
time of Henry VIL. )

Mr. Samuel Tymms exhibited a ring with cameo onyx of Assyrian head. A
leaden token of very ancient date with tle name of “ John Edwards thereon, found
in Bury St. Edmund’s. Sulphur and gutta percha impressions of the seals of the
Burgesses of Eye; the Honor of Eye; and the Priory of Eye. A seal of Ethilwald
Bishop of Dunwich, from bronze matrix found at Eye, engraved in Archaologia, vol.
xx. Seal of Butley Priory, Suffolk, from a deed, dafed 4 Ldw. IV., in Caius-college,
Cambridge. Seal of Michael de la Pole, first Karl of Suffolk, and seal of Michael
Stanhope, Vice-Admiral of Suffolk. Inedited seal of Thomas de Tottington, Abbot
of Bury, in 1308. A quarter noble of Edw. IV. struck after the victory at
Mortimer’s Cross, found in the churchyard, Bury-; and several gold coins of James
I and Charles 1. found at Ixworth.

The Rev. J. A. Campbell read an interesting memoir, by T. W. Barlow, Esq., of

_ Manchester, of thelife and labours of Dr. William Broome, sometime Vicar of Eye,
who translated eight books of the Odyssey for Pope. This memoir has been since
published, prefixed to an edition of Broome’s works. :

The Rev. R. Cobbold then explained to the meeting a curious political painting
of the 17th century, which was exhibited. The picture is six feet ten inches long,
and three ieet five inches in depth ; and contains thirty-one figures, as Mr. Cobbold
remarked, to represent the conjunction of the * Cabal,” of Clifford, Arlington,
Buckingham, Ashley, and Lauderdale (the initials of whose names make the word
“ Cabal”’) with the Pope and the Lord Mayor of London, to overthrow the Church
of England. It was purchased amongst some refuse at Lord Thurlow’s sale. A
print of it was sold at Christie’s a short time since, as part of the property of the
late Bdmund Burke, Esq., “ printed by Mary Clarke, for Henry Brome, at the Lyon,
in St. Paul’s Churchyard, 1681.”

The company then proceeded to the Castle and the Church, where memoirs on
their history were read by the Rev. Henry Creed.

It was intended to have adjourned from the Church to the Priory Farm, where
some fragments of the conventual buildings still exist, with a curious series of small -
moated .enclosures ; but time would not permit. The company afterwards dined
together in the Assembly Room. )
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Bohun'’s Diary and Autobiography, 4to.
Britton : the 2nd edition by Edm. Wingate, Gent., 1640
Bury 8t. Edmund’s, Battley’s Antiguitates S. Edmundi Burgi, 4to.
————=————— Description of Bury and its Environs, 8vo,
Historical Notice of Norman Tower, 8vo.
Yates’s Bury Abbey, first edit. 4to.
Cambridge Antiquarian Society, Reports of, 8vo.
Cambridgeshire, Babington’s Antient, 8vo.
Church Restoration, Plea for, by G. G. Scott, 12mo.
Coins, Catalogue of Kerrich’s Collection of Roman, 8vo.
Consultationis de Variorvm Morborvm Curationib, Jo. Baptistee Montani
Veronensis, 1557 .
Corner (@.R.) on the Custom of Borough English in the County of Sussex, 8vo.-
Donaldson (Dr.) on Two Unsolved Problems in Indo-German Philology, 8vo.
Dunwich, Gardener’s History of, 4to.
Bird’s Dunwich and Vale of Slaughden, two Poems, 8vo.

Egyptian Museum, Liverpool, Catalogue of, 8vo.
Elwswell and Campsey Ash, History and Antiquities of, 4to.
Endlicher’s (8.) Grenera Plantarum secundum ordines Naturales disposita, 8vo.
Framlingham, Bird’s Framlingham Castle, a poem, 8vo.
- Hawes’s History of, 4to.
French Bible, 1652
Greco-Egyptian Fragment on Magic, 8vo.
Halliwell’s Rara Mathematica, 8vo.

Cambridge M.S. Rarities, 8vo.

Introduction to Midsummer Night's Dream, 8vo.
———— Connection of Wales with Early Science of England, 8vo.
Hawsted, Cullum’s History of, 1st edit. 4to.
Hengrave, Gage's History of, large paper, folio
Henry VIIL, Life of, by Lord Herbert of Cherbury, 4to.
Ipswich Gifts and Legacies, &c., 8vo.
~——— Clarke’s History of, 8vo.
——— Memoir of Thomas Green of, 4to.
Ives's Select Papers relating to English Antiguities, 4to.
Kilkenny Archsological Society, Transaction of, 2 vols.
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Towestoft, Gillingwater's History of, 4to.

Lymne (Kent), Excavations at, 46o.

Lynn (King's), Mackerell's History and Auntiquities of, 8vo.

Mallett’s Northern Antiquities, 12mo

Massachusetts (U. S.), Records of, 2 vols. folio

Monachism, Fosbroke’s British, 8vo.

Monumental Brasses, Boutell’s, folio

Monuments, Boutell's Christian, part i. 8vo.

Neweastle-upon-Tyne, Brand’s History of, 2 vols. 4to.

Nimbus, French’s Notes on the, 8vo. .

Norfolk, Blomefield’s History of, 11 vols. 8vo.

Archgeology, 2 vols. 8vo.

Painters and Eogravers, Bryan’s Dictionary of, 2 vols. 4¢o.

Rigaud (S. P.) on some Early Proposals for Steam Navigation, 8vo.
- on the Arenarius of Archimedes, 8vo.

St. Andrew and St. Veronica, Anglo-Sazon Legends of, 8vo.

Slogans of the North of England, 4to.

Smith’s (C. R.) Museum of London Antiquities, Catalogue of, 8vo.

Southwold, Wake’s Southwold and its Vicinity, 8vo.

Sprott’s Chronicle of Profane and Sacred History, 4to.

Stowmarket, Hollmgsworth’s History of, 4to.

Sudbury, Badham’s History of All Saints Church, 8vo.

Suffolk Pamphlets, 8vo.

——— Charities, Report of Commissioners, folio

——— Garland, 8vo. )

—— Kirby’s Suffollk Traveller, illustrated with MS. notes by Jermyn, and
original documents, 8vo.

——— Ordnance Map of

—_—— Shoberl’s Historical Description of, 8vo. )

—— Smith’s (C. R.) Anglo-Saxon Remains in, &e., 8vo

Trial of Corder for the Murder of Maria Marten, at Polstead, 8vo.

——— Wodderspoon’s Historic Sites of, 8vo.

Thingoe Hundred, Gage’s History of, 4to.

Woodbridge Terrier, 4t0.
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